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Procurement Division 
400 Rivermont Drive, Columbia, SC 29210 

803-602-0831 Direct   803-771-8722 Fax
nkelley@riverbanks.org Email

AMENDMENT TO SOLICITATION 
AMENDMENT NO. 1                            ISSUE DATE:  06/19/2025 

SOLICITATION NO. P2025-05-04  DATED:  05/20/2025    

PROJECT: Mechanical Engineering Services for Tuskers HVAC System 

QUESTIONS TO ANSWERS: 
All questions received by companies through June 10, 2025 have been combined and answered in red below. 

QUESTION 1): The request for qualifications lists a cost proposal and breakdown on cost. Engineers don’t 
compete by costs (the engineering board deems cost competition to be unethical), we present qualifications 
and selections are made based on qualification. Please provide an update for evaluation criteria. 
ANSWER 1): See attached 

QUESTION 2): Is an insurance certificate required with the proposal for qualifications. Insurance 
requirement schedule seems to apply to contractors.  Please update for engineering services if required. 
ANSWER 2): The insurance certificate is not required with the proposal for qualifications, however it will 
be required for the awarded vendor to provide per Attachment A in the solicitation document.  

QUESTION 3): Are drawings of the existing mechanical installation available? 
ANSWER 3): Yes, see attached 

QUESTION 4): The RFP states submissions to be delivered to 500 Wildlife Pkwy.  Are the proposals to be 
delivered to the guest services building where we met or another location at the zoo?  
ANSWER 4): Please send all RFP documents to: 

Noelle Kelley 
400 Rivermont Drive 
Columbia, SC 29120 

QUESTION 5): We understand that there is some language in the RFP that references General 
Contracting that is merely residual and the intent is clear by other context. However, could Riverbanks 
Zoo clarify whether the bullets under the Staffing Proposal section remain relevant? We assume the Zoo 
would like our approach to Engineering (and associated discipline) staffing throughout the project versus 
a plan for construction discipline staffing. Is this correct? 
ANSWER 5): This is correct. 

QUESTION 6): Under the "Selection of Contractor" section - there is mention of a Cost Proposal (with a 
breakdown of cost and all associated costs).  Also, the stated evaluation criteria includes "Proposed Project 
Cost." However, the "Information to be included in the Proposal" section does not reference cost 
information. Typically, in a qualifications-based selection such as this, proposed design fees would be 
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negotiated after selection (usually as a percentage of ultimate construction cost). Could the Zoo provide 
clarification whether a cost proposal is desired at this stage of the evaluation? And if so, specifically what 
information is desired by the Zoo? At this point, we don't think there is enough information available yet 
regarding the potential scope of the HVAC replacement to provide a creditably accurate Opinion of 
Probable Cost (OPC) to the Zoo for construction.  
ANSWER 6): Please provide an estimated cost percentage instead of a cost proposal. 
 
QUESTION 7): Ref: Evidence of Financial Responsibility - as the professional services division of our firm, 
our A/E division does not routinely obtain formally audited financial statements as they are not typically 
necessary for that element of our business. We do, however, rely on current reviewed financials by calendar 
year for our construction services and design-build divisions (i.e., construction-related entities), which is 
used in part to establish and maintain our firm's bonding capacity and is indicative of the overall financial 
strength. We do, though, consider any specific financial disclosures "confidential." Would the Zoo consider 
alternative information to meet this requirement (such as evidence of our bonding capacity) instead of 
financial statements/data at this time? If selected for award, GMK could provide needed financial data 
upon request. 
ANSWER 7): Reviewed financial marked “Confidential” would be sufficient evidence of financial 
responsibility. 
 
QUESTION 8): There was mention at the site visit that "As-Built" or other Building Drawings" may be 
available for the Tuskers Restaurant building and infrastructure. While not imperative for the 
qualifications submittal, would the Zoo be willing to provide those drawings? We would want such 
drawings should the Zoo select to conduct short-list interviews. 
ANSWER 8): Yes, see attached 
 
QUESTION 9): Will the selected engineering firm be responsible for including architectural and structural 
consultants on the team? 
ANSWER 9): Yes, however KCI Technologies is our preferred structural consultant. 
 
QUESTION 10): Is in-house cost estimating acceptable, or is the use of third-party estimators required? 
ANSWER 10): In-house cost estimating is acceptable 
 
QUESTION 11): Are existing drawings available for the restaurant? 
ANSWER 11): Yes, see attached 
 
QUESTION 12): Does the existing roof have a performance bond or is there a preferred roofing 
contractor? 
ANSWER 12): There is no preference on roofing contractor or a performance bond.  
 
QUESTION 13): Are the hood exhaust fans or hoods to be considered in the scope? 
ANSWER 13): Yes, include all intake/outtake hoods/fans. 
 
 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
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Offerors must acknowledge receipt of this amendment by one of the following methods: (a) By signing and returning one 
copy of this amendment with your bid; (b) By acknowledging receipt of this amendment on each copy of the bid submitted; 
or separate letter which includes a reference to the solicitation and amendment numbers.  Failure of your acknowledgment 
to be received at the Purchasing Office prior to the hour and date of the opening may result in rejection of your offer.  If by 
virtue of this amendment, you desire to change an offer already submitted, such change may be made by letter, provided 
such letter makes reference to the solicitation and this amendment and is received prior to the opening hour and date 
specified. 
 
COMPANY NAME: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
NAME & TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE______________________________ 
 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE ______________________________ 
 
Noelle Kelley 
Noelle Kelley 
Procurement Manager  



EVALUATION/SELECTION CRITERIA:  
A selection committee will evaluate the information submitted and may select finalists for 
interviews.   
The following criteria shall be used to evaluate each firm:   
  

• Specialized experience of the firm and technical expertise of firm personnel in 
connection with scope of services; 50%   

  
• Past record of performance on projects of similar size and scope; 30%   

  
• Capability of firm to perform the work within time limitations, taking into 
consideration the current and planned workload of firm; 20%   
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